ORIGINAL INSTRUCTIONS - according to Directive 2006/42/EC, Annex I 1.7.4.1

OPERATOR'S MANUAL

Feed Manager Mixer



Part number 81PIGB-118x Ist edition English February 2018

THE FOLLOWING MODELS ARE CERTIFIED FOR FCC (USA) AND IC (CANADA):

JE783

- FCC ID 2AE3QJE783
- IC: 20352-JE783

JE784

- FCC ID 2AE3QJE784
- IC: 20352-JE784

JE785

- FCC ID 2AE3QJE785
- IC: 20352-JE785

JE786

- FCC ID 2AE3QJE786
- IC: 20352-JE786

Statement:

USA:

This device complies with Part 15 of the FCC Rules.

- Operation is subject to the following two conditions:
 - 1. this device may not cause harmful interference, and
 - 2. this device must accept any interference received, including interference that may cause undesired operation.

Note:

This equipment has been tested and found to comply with the limits for a Class B digital device, pursuant to part 15 of the FCC Rules. These limits are designed to provide reasonable protection against harmful interference in a residential installation. This equipment generates uses and can radiate radio frequency energy and, if not installed and used in accordance with the instructions, may cause harmful interference to radio communications. However, there is no guarantee that interference will not occur in a particular installation. If this equipment does cause harmful interference to radio or television reception, which can be determined by turning the equipment off and on, the user is encouraged to try to correct the interference by one or more of the following measures:

- Reorient or relocate the receiving antenna.
- Increase the separation between the equipment and receiver.
- Connect the equipment into an outlet on a circuit different from the one in which the receiver is connected.
- Consult the dealer or an experienced radio/TV technician for help.
- Changes or modifications can void the user's authority to operate the equipment.

Canada:

This device complies with Industry Canada licence-exempt RSS standards.

This Class B digital apparatus complies with Canadian ICES-003. Cet appareil numérique de la classe B est conforme à la norme NMB-003 du Canada.

Operation is subject to the following two conditions:

- 1. this device may not cause interference, and
- 2. this device must accept any interference, including interference that may cause undesired operation of the device.

L'exploitation est autorisée aux deux conditions suivantes:

- 1. l'appareil ne doit pas produire de brouillage, et
- 2.l'utilisateur de l'appareil doit accepter tout brouillage radioélectrique subi, même si le brouillage est susceptible d'en compromettre le fonctionnement.

CONTENTS

CONTENTS	3
1 FEED MANAGER	5
	55
Basic	
Dasict	
	/
MOONTING AND USE	9
2. MENU, MAIN TERMINAL	11
1. PROGRAM UNLOAD (A)	11
2. INFO (B)	13
3. SETUP (C)	15
4. PROGRAM LOAD (D)	17
5. DATA (E)	19
LOAD BASIC ⁺ (F)	23
LOAD PROFEED ⁺ (G)	25
	27
	۲۱ 27
UN / UFF (A) TADA / I OAD (D)	
TARA / LOAD (B)	
4. PC SOFTWARE	
INSTALLATION OF PC SOFTWARE	
MENU A: "VIEW DATA"	
MENU B: "LOAD PLANS"	
MENU C: "UNLOAD PLANS"	
MENU D: "USERS"	
MENU E: "SETTINGS"	
MENU F: "SYNCHRONIZE FEEDERS"	
A) ASSEMBLY BUX FOR WEIGHING CELLS	
D) SENDER/RECEIVER FOR USB	53
6. MISCELLANEOUS	55
LEARNING	
INTERRUPTIONS	55





1. FEED MANAGER

KONGSKILDE offers Feed Manager (the wireless weighing system) in three versions:

BASIC

Weight information via wireless display with tara-function (reset), unload help, choice of language and display settings (white buttons on main terminal).

BASIC+

The same as "Basic" but including the characteristic "help for filling of feed / loading function".

PROFEED+

The same as "Basic" extended with professional loading function, registration of data, wireless syncronization module, pc-program for collation of registered data and various settings as well as modification of unload plans and settings.

The Basic weighing system can subsequently be upgraded to Basic+ or Profeed+.

Fig. 1.1 Modules which are included in the wireless weighing system (besides the weighing cells):

Basic / Basic+:

- A) An intelligent assembly box for weighing cells which among other things contains a radio transmitter / receiver.
- B) A main terminal with graphic display which is typically placed in the loading tractor.
- C) A hand terminal with graphic display which is typically placed in the tractor in front of the feeder (is supplied with cable fitted). However, it can be brought along (battery-powered) and used as slave display by the large terminal in connection with filling of feed (when using the same tractor for filling and operating the feeder the hand terminal can be spared, or you can use several hand terminals if required).

Profeed+:

D) Radio transmitter / receiver which must be connected to a USB port on a PC.

E) PC software for setting up of load plans and unload plans as well as analyses of the actually loaded amounts of feed.

Besides, software for up-grading the system to Basic+ and Profeed+.

SPECIFICATION

- B: Applies for the Basic-module
- B+: Applies for the Basic+-module

P+: Applies for the Profeed+-module (PC-software included)

	Main terminal B)	Hand terminal C)	PC- soft- ware E)
CE-approved	B, B+, P+	B, B+, P+	
Wireless communication to assembly box on feeder	B, B+, P+	B, B+, P+	
Wireless communication to PC	P+		
Data registration: date, time, terminal No., user- ID, load plan number, number of animals, in- gredient No., ingredient name, planned weight, actual weight	P+		P+
Data presented graphically or in tabular form			P+
Languages (Danish, English, German, French, Swedish, Spanish, Finnish, Russian, Polish)	B, B+, P+	B, B+, P+	P+
Storage capacity 7500 mixtures	P+		
Storage capacity 99 load plans	B+, P+		
15 feed types per load plan	B+, P+		
9 load plans	B, B+, P+	B, B+, P+	
64 named feed types (32 pre-defined and 32 user-defined)	B, B+, P+		
Acoustic help for loading as well as for dis- charge	(B), B+, P+	(B), B+, P+	
Display of weight	B, B+, P+	B, B+, P+	

Range, feeder/display: approx. 30 m (without hindrances such as buildings etc.).

3 different loading techniques can be chosen:

- A. LOAD Basic: Simple weight.
- B. LOAD Basic+: Automatic routine which shifts to next ingredient after an acoustic signal
- C. LOAD ProFeed+: The user must acknowledge in order to shift to the next ingredient. Loading in arbitrary order.

MOUNTING AND USE

<u>The assembly box</u> is always mounted on the machine from the factory, among other things because the calibration data are stored inside the box.



Must be supplied with 12-24 V DC through the cable with the 2-pole plug and there must be a max. 10A fuse.

The main terminal must be placed in the tractor.



Must be supplied with 12-24 V DC through the cable with the 2-pole plug and there must be a max. 10A fuse.

The main terminal is delivered with a holder that can be mounted in the tractor cabin. Alternatively the terminal can be mounted on the mounting arm for optimal placement by means of the strong sucking disc.

<u>The hand terminal</u> can also be placed in the tractor by means of the included holder. Alternatively the holder can be mounted on the mounting arm for optimal placement by means of the strong sucking disc.



Must be supplied with 12-24 V DC and a max. 10A fuse.

It can also be supplied with a 9 V alkaline or rechargeable battery (we recommend the last-mentioned). For recharging a rechargeable battery we offer a charge unit with plug outlet for hand terminal. For permanent placement at bins or the like, we offer a power supply (220V converted to 12V). (Contact your KONGSKILDE Dealer. See spare parts book for order number).

If it is placed in the tractor permanently we recommend the use of 12-24 V DC supply.



The life time of the battery can be increased considerably by <u>not</u> having the back-ground light activated.

If batteries are used please avoid storage at temperatures below 0°C.



Fig. 2.1

2. MENU, MAIN TERMINAL

Fig. 2.1 The following describes the menus in the main terminal. A menu or a menu point is selected by means of \rightarrow or the OK button. A menu is exited by means of \leftarrow . General navigation in the menus takes place by means of the arrow keys.

1. PROGRAM UNLOAD (A)

Program unload is a feature that offers help for unloading.

1.1. Unload:

Activates the unload mode selected under 1.3. With per cent or kilo intervals, the terminal leaps to unload. At unload plan (ULP) you first have to choose between the available ULPs. The unloading is concluded by pressing the "program unload" (A) button.

1.2. Alarm on/off:

Turning the alarm on or off. After turning on the alarm, the desired number of acoustic signals must be chosen. Select a number from 1-5 by means of \downarrow and \uparrow and press OK to end.

1.3. Unload mode:

There are 3 options:

- kg interval: Here the length of the intervals between the acoustic signals measured in kg/lb is stated. If "1000" is typed in there will be an acoustic signal for each 1000 kg/lb that are discharged. The number of kg is chosen by means of ↓ and ↑. Press OK. The acoustic signal implies that the alarm is on.
- % of total: Here the length of the intervals between the acoustic signals measured in % of the total amount of feed in the feeder is stated. If "33" is typed in and there are 4500 kg in the feeder there will be an acoustic signal for each 1500 kg that are discharged. The percentage is selected by means of ↓ and ↑. Press OK to end.
 - The acoustic signal implies that the alarm is on.
- ULP: Division of individual groups (an unload plan). Acoustic signal when the discharge for a specific group is coming to an end. E.g. 3 animal groups: one group must have 1000 kg, the second group 2000 kg and the third group the rest of the feed. There will be an acoustic signal when 1000 kg has been discharged and again after 3000 kg.

The ULP is created under point 1.5. (create ULP) or by means of Profeed+ PC software. The ULP point only appears if one or more unload plans have been created.



Fig. 2.1

1.4. Transfer Unload:

Here the unload mode selected under 1.3 is transferred to the hand terminal(s). The alarm settings are also transferred.



PLEASE NOTE! THE HAND TERMINAL MUST BE SWITCHED ON.

1.5. Create ULP

State number of groups. In order to edit the field press "OK". The field is changed from filled square to transparent square. When the field is transparent the value can be changed by using \downarrow and \uparrow . Press "OK" to end the process. Now state the total amount that according to load plan should be in the feeder when it is ready for discharge. Now state how many kg feed each group must have. The last group will automatically receive the rest of the feed. After the last statement press \downarrow and then choose OK. Now the unload plan has been saved. **Please note!** The unload plan is automatically given the next available number in succession.

The unload plan can also in case of Profeed+ be created via PC-software.

1.6. Edit ULP:

Menu point that appears when an ULP has been created.

Choose the desired plan from the list by pressing \rightarrow . In order to edit the field press "OK". The field is changed from filled square to transparent square. When the field is transparent the value can be changed by using \downarrow and \uparrow . After editing press \downarrow until the words OK/Regret are shown in the display. Finish the process by pressing OK at the bottom.

1.7. Delete ULP:

Menu point that appears when an ULP has been created. Choose the desired plan from the list by pressing \rightarrow . Choose "Yes" by means of \rightarrow .

2. INFO (B)

Contains information regarding user-specific loadings (number of mixtures, periods, total weight) as well as total amount of mixtures, period and total weight discharged.



Fig. 2.1

3. SETUP (C)

3.1. Language:

Choose the desired language from the list by pressing \rightarrow .

3.2. Date and time:

You can leaf from field to field by means of \rightarrow . Change the setting in the field by pressing \downarrow and \uparrow . Finish the process by pressing OK at the bottom.

3.3. Alarm sound:

5 different types of sounds can be chosen by means of \rightarrow .

3.4. Display backlight:

You can choose between "On" and "Off" by means of \rightarrow .

3.5. Display contrast:

You can choose a setting from a list from 1 to 10 by means of $\downarrow\uparrow$ and \rightarrow . 1 is quite bright and 10 is quite black. Setting 5 will in most cases be the best choice.

3.6. Calibration:

For authorized service staff only. An access code is required in order to gain access to this menu.

3.7. User:

There are 2 options:

Select user: Select the desired user from the list by pressing \rightarrow .

Create user: New user can be created. The user name can consist of maximum 4 digits. Each digit can be chosen by pressing ↓ and ↑. The complete alphabet (both block letters and small letters) as well as the numbers from 0 to 9 can be chosen. Finish the process by pressing OK at the bottom.

3.8. Weight speed:

Here the update-speed of the weighing system is adjusted. If necessary, the sensitivity of the weighing system can be reduced. You can choose a setting from 1 to 10 by means of $\downarrow\uparrow$, 10 being the least sensitive.

3.9. Weight unit:

You can choose between "kg" and "lb" (pound) by means of \rightarrow .

3.10. Automatic turn-off function

You can choose between "On" and "Off" by means of \rightarrow . If automatic turn-off function is "On" the main terminal will turn off 1 hour after the last key has been pressed.

3.11. Learn mode:

In order for all units to work together as one system which is not disturbed by signals from the outside, they must be "linked together". See chapter 6 and the section about learning.

3.12. About

Shows which software version is in the main terminal and its unique serial number. The serial number is necessary in case of calibration.



Fig. 2.1

4. PROGRAM LOAD (D)

4.1. Alarm setup:

4.1.1 Alarm on/off:

You can choose between "On" and "Off" by means of \rightarrow .

4.1.2 Alarm setpoint:

Here the number of kg or lb (pounds) is stated, at which the alarm sounds in connection with loading of ingredients, in order to indicate that the loading amount has soon been reached.

4.2. Loading mode:

Only relevant in connection with "LOAD ProFeed+".

There are 2 options:

Semi-automatic: When "LOAD ProFeed+" is used the system automatically leaps to the next ingredient. This happens approx. 12 seconds after the desired amount has been reached. Mode of operation corresponds to "LOAD Basic+" but filling data are stored. Can by means of ↓ be forced to leap to the next ingredient if the amount is not reached.
 User controlled: The safe method that should always be used in connection with "LOAD ProFeed+". The user must actively choose the desired ingredient and must also actively stop the filling of each ingredient.

4.3. Create LP (load plan):

The load plan is automatically given the next available number in succession. Type in number of ingredients. In order to edit the field press "OK". The field is changed from filled square to transparent square. When the field is transparent the value can be changed by using \downarrow and \uparrow . Press "OK" to end the process. "Number of animals" can be typed in the same way.

The name of the ingredient can be chosen from a table which can be edited on a PC. By pressing "OK" it is possible to leaf through the table by means of \rightarrow and \leftarrow . Press "OK" to end. Now type in the number of kg (lb) that applies to the ingredient in question.

When all fields are filled in, finish the process by pressing OK at the bottom.

4.4. Edit LP:

Menu point that appears when a LP has been created.

Choose the load plan that must be edited from the list by pressing \rightarrow . Now the fields can be changed as described under 4.3.

4.5. Delete LP:

Menu point that appears when a LP has been created.

Choose the load plan that must be deleted from the list by pressing \rightarrow . Now you must answer "yes" or "no". If you choose "yes" (by means of \rightarrow) the chosen load plan is deleted.



Fig. 2.1

5. DATA (E)

5.1. Show data:

There are 3 options:

5.1.1. All data:

You must choose a date interval to limit the amount of data which is subsequently shown. Below you can see an example with only 3 stored feed mixtures. The amount of data that can be shown in the display at a time is marked with a thick frame, which can be moved by means of the arrow keys.

5.1.1 Data 1/3	5.1.1 Data 2/3	5.1.1 Data 3/3
LP#02 Cow: 55	LP#04 Cow: 73	LP#02 Cow: 55
05.12.06 14:20	05.12.06 15:12	06.12.06 16:17
User: John	User: John	User: John
3755 kg (3740)	4265 kg (4255)	3760 kg (3740)
5.1.1 Data 1/3	5.1.1 Data 2/3	5.1.1 Data 3/3
1. Hay, grass.:	1. Rape cakes:	1. Hay, grass.:
1810 kg (1800)	425 kg (435)	1815 kg (1800)
2. Maise sila.:	2. Straw:	2. Maise sila.:
1945 kg (1940)	75 kg (70)	1945 kg (1940)
5.1.1 Data 1/3	5.1.1 Data 2/3	5.1.1 Data 3/3
	3. Hay, grass.:	
	1930 kg (1920)	
	4. Maise sila.:	
Return	1845 kg (1830)	Return
	5.1.1 Data 2/3	
	Return	

The number in the brackets shows the quantity according to the load plan on the particular day. The number in front of the brackets shows the amount of that has acutally been loaded into the Feeder.

5.1.2. Total/ingred. (Total amount of ingredient):

You must choose a date interval to limit the amount of data which is subsequently shown. Now a list of all the ingredients appears that have been used within the chosen period as well as the added-up quantities belonging to it.

5.1.3. Total/LP (Total amount of ingredient per load plan):

You must choose a date interval to limit the amount of data which is subsequently shown. Now a list of all the load plans appears that have been used within the chosen period as well as the added-up quantities belonging to it.

5.2. Delete data

5.2.1. Delete all.

Deletes all data.

5.2.2. Delete by date.

Deletes the data in a given period Sets of data which are older than or equal to the chosen date are deleted.

5.3 Memory

Shows the amount of free usage data. One per loading.



Fig. 2.1





Fig. 2.3

LOAD BASIC⁺ (F)

Fig 2.2 Choose the desired load plan from the list by pressing \rightarrow . User and number of animals can be changed. This is done by means of \downarrow and \uparrow .

When you press "OK" the actual load plan is scaled in proportion to the amount of animals.

Before starting the filling press "OK" and the first ingredient is marked. The first number shows how many kg of the ingredient in question must be filled and the last number shows how many kg are actually filled in.

The large number at the top shows the difference between the desired and the actual value. A positive value means that the amount has been exceeded.

If the alarm is on, you will hear an acoustic signal when the amount of feed that is filled in reaches the amount stated in the load plan. When the desired amount has been reached it **automatically** leaps on to the next ingredient.

In order to allow that any remaining amount in the bucket can be filled in, there is a delay of 12 seconds before it leaps on.

Can by means of \downarrow be forced to leap to the next ingredient if the amount is not reached.



With Basic+ it is <u>not</u> possible to leap backwards in the load plan, and the amounts that are filled into the feeder are <u>not stored</u>.

If you wish to end without using the load plan press LOAD Basic⁺ and choose "Yes".

The large number in the display shows the amount that still needs to be loaded of the ingredient in question.

Fig. 2.3 When a hand terminal is active and load has been chosen on this terminal, an icon is shown at the top of the display on the main terminal. In this situation it is the hand terminal that decides when to leap on. The main terminal takes over the control by pressing "OK", ↓ or ↑.









Fig. 2.3

PR13-0222

LOAD PROFEED⁺ (G)

Fig 2.2 Choose the desired load plan from the list by pressing \rightarrow . User and number of animals can be changed. This is done by means of \downarrow and \uparrow .

When you press "OK" the actual load plan is scaled in proportion to the amount of animals.

Chose the ingredient that must be filled in with \downarrow and \uparrow . Before starting the filling press "OK" and the ingredient is marked. The first number shows how many kg of the ingredient in question must be filled and the last number shows how many kg are actually filled in. The large number at the top shows the difference between the desired and the actual value. A positive value means that the amount has been exceeded. Press OK to leave the active ingredient. In this case the large number at the top shows the total weight in relation to the latest resetting.

If the alarm is on, you will hear an acoustic signal when the amount of feed that is filled in reaches the amount stated in the load plan.

As soon as you reach the amount press "OK", \downarrow or \uparrow . Now the actual quantity is stored in the memory.



With ProFeed+ it is possible to leap backwards in the load plan, and you can always fill-in some more of an ingredient that has already been used. *It is not the system, but the user who decides what is going to happen.*

In order to navigate between the individual ingredients, you need to choose "user controlled" under 4.2.

If you wish to end without using the load plan, press LOAD ProFeed⁺ and choose "Yes".

Fig. 2.3 When a hand terminal is active and load has been chosen on this terminal, an icon is shown at the top of the display on the main terminal. In this situation it is the hand terminal that decides when to leap on. The main terminal takes over the control by pressing "OK", \downarrow or \uparrow .



If the Feeder is moved during loading, we recommend you to leave the active ingredient. This is done by pressing "OK". Thereby you ensure an exact registration (due to physical influence when moving the Feeder, the weight indication may deviate a bit).



Fig. 3.1

3. MENU, HAND TERMINAL

ON / OFF (A)

Fig. 3.1 Press ON/OFF to view following menu points in the display:

Weighing Unloading Setup

Use ↓ to leap and press "OK" to choose a menu point.

Weighing:

The display shows the actual weight received from the assembly box which is placed on the Feeder.

Unloading:

If unload plans have been transferred from the main terminal they can be chosen from a list.

Setup:

If you choose Setup the following menu points will appear in the display:

Contrast (6) Backlight (On) Auto off (10) Learn mode Return

The value in the brackets shows the actual setting.

Display contrast:

You can choose a setting from a list from 1 to 10 by means of \downarrow . 1 is quite bright and 10 is quite black. Setting 6 will in most cases be the best choice.

Backlight:

You can choose between "On" and "Off" by means of ↓.

Automatic turn-off function:

You can choose how many minutes the terminal must be turned on.

Learn mode:

Is chosen after menu point 3.11 has been chosen on the main terminal. This links the hand terminal together with the main terminal. See chapter 6 and the section about learning.

Return:

Returns to main menu.



Fig. 3.1

TARA / LOAD (B)

Press TARA/LOAD to view the following menu points in the display:

Tara Load Weighing

Use \downarrow to leap and press "OK" to choose a menu point.

Tara:

If you choose Tara the weight is zeroed. The new reference point is stored in the assembly box which is placed on the Feeder, exactly the same way as if you press tara on the main terminal. If you press Tara when the main terminal is in a load, a menu will appear in which you can choose between Tara and return.



Remember that when you are resetting during a load, both the weight of the current ingredient and the total weight will disappear.

Load:

Only has a function if LOAD Basic⁺ or LOAD ProFeed⁺ is activated on the main terminal. The display shows the same as the main terminal. I. e. it works as a "Remote display". Besides, \downarrow and "OK" also function.

The hand terminal is thus also a remote control which allows you to accept the quantity that has just been filled in and leap on to the next ingredient.

If you want to return to the top, you need to navigate to the bottom and answer "no" to ending.

Weighing:

Shows the actual weight the last time Tara was pressed.



Fig. 4.1

4. PC SOFTWARE

INSTALLATION OF PC SOFTWARE

The ProFeed+ PC-software is developed for Windows XP and Windows Vista. The software can also operate on Windows 98, 2000, ME and NT, but this requires fully updated versions.

It may be necessary to deactivate the anti-virus programme during the installation.

In Windows Vista it may be necessary to deactivate user control (UAC) in order to be allowed to install the program. This is done by choosing "start", "control panel", "user accounts". Here you must choose "Turn User Account Control On or Off". Remove the check mark and press" OK". The changes will become effective when the computer has been restarted.

- 1) Insert the CD in the drive and follow the instructions in the installation program. If the installation program does not start automatically: open "Explorer", click on the cd-drive and select "setup.exe."
- 2) Connect the USB unit to the computer. Wait until Windows has installed the software.
- 3) By choosing the ProFeed+ icon (symbol: a happy cow!) ProFeed+ can now be started.

If the computer is using Windows 98/2000/ME or NT it may be necessary to choose the menu point "Settings" (see section **E** further ahead) and under "Communication settings" the port must be chosen manually from a list.

Fig. 4.1 In order to find the right port you must feel your way or look in the control panel. In the example (Fig. 4.1) the unit is connected to COM5.



Please note! In connection with updating of software, the installation program will ask "Keep existing data". If you answer "No", all registered data, load plans, unload plans and users will be deleted.



Fig. 4.2

MENU A: "VIEW DATA"

Fig. 4.2

1. "Choice of method".

There are 6 options:

All data:	All preserved data are shown. Shown as one feeding at a time, sorted after date and time.
Ingredient:	Used together with 2. "Criteria", 3. "Start" and 4. "End". Shows the consumption of a certain ingredient within a given time interval.
Load plan:	Used together with 2. "Criteria", 3. "Start" and 4. "End". Shows the use of a load plan within a given time interval.
User:	Used together with 2. "Criteria", 3. "Start" and 4. "End". Shows which mixtures a certain user has made within a given time interval.
Feeder:	Used together with 2. "Criteria", 3. "Start" and 4. "End". Shows which mixtures a certain Feeder has made within a given time interval.
Total/Ingredient:	Used together with 2. "Criteria", 3. "Start" and 4. "End". Shows the sum of planned and actual consumption within a given time interval.

5. "Export to CSV file"

The shown data are exported to a semicolon separated standard spreadsheet file. If for example Excel is installed on the computer this program is automatically opened and the file can be saved and/or printed.

6. "Make printable report"

The shown data are exported to Word which opens automatically after which they can be printed and processed freely or saved. The table in the Word document can be copied to Excel.



Fig. 4.3

MENU B: "LOAD PLANS"

Fig. 4.3 Create new load plan:

1. +

Press the green plus at the bottom of the display and a new load plan is created. The load plan is automatically given the next available number in succession.

2. "Number of animals"

Here is stated the amount of animals that have to share the mixture. It is simultaneously a "scaling factor". I. e. if the amount of aminals is changed the ingredient weight is automatically scaled.

3. +

Press the green plus and a new ingredient is added to the load plan. Then the dialogue box described under point 4 appears.

4. "Ingredient name"

The name of the ingredient can be chosen from a list. There are approx. 30 preprogrammed names. If the desired name is not on the list a new name can be added by pressing the green plus. The name must not be longer than maximum 8 characters.

In the end the wanted weight is typed in.

5.

Press the disc-symbol and the plan is stored.



Fig. 4.4

Fig. 4.4 Edit load plan:

6. ←→

Choose the desired load plan by means of the arrow keys. $\{1/3\}$ indicates that there are 3 load plans and that number 1 is shown.

7. +

Press the green plus and a new ingredient is added to the load plan. Then the dialogue box described under point 4 appears.

8. -

Press the red minus and the selected ingredient is deleted from the load plan.

9.

If you press the pencil-symbol a dialogue box appears and you can edit the chosen ingredient.

10. ↑↓

By means of the green arrow keys the placing of the chosen ingredient can be changed. I. e. the order of the ingredients can easily be changed subsequently.

11.

Press the disc-symbol and the plan is stored.

12. "Last modified"

The date shows when the plan was last changed.

13. "Print"

I Profeed+				
Exit				
Data analysis				
System setup				
Settings	Unload plan			
	Plan number	1	0.00	
Synchronize	Last modified:	30-04-2009 12:52	0	
	Number of groups	3		
	Total weight	4405	Kg	
	Weight group 1	1500	Κα	
	Weight group 2	2200	Kg	
	Weight group 3	705	Kg	
	Weight group 4	0	Kg	
	Weight group 5	0	Kg	
		(1/2)		
		4	(5) (7)	
Ready				
				0211
				PR13-0

Fig. 4.5

MENU C: "UNLOAD PLANS"

Fig. 4.5

1. "Number of groups"

A mixture can be fed out in several partial portions. The number of portions is the same as the number of groups.

2. "Total weight"

Here is stated the total amount that according to load plan should be in the feeder when it is ready for discharge.

3. "Weight distribution"

Now state how many kg feed each group must have. The last group will automatically receive the rest of the feed.

4. {1/2}

Indicates that 2 unload plans have been stored – of which no. 1 is shown. With the arrow keys you can "leaf" through the stored plans.

5. x

Press the red cross and the shown unload plan is deleted.

6. +

Press the green plus and a new unload plan is created. The unload plan is automatically given the next available number in succession.

7.

Press the disc-symbol and the plan is stored.

8. "Print"



Fig. 4.6

MENU D: "USERS"

Fig. 4.6

1.

A new user can be added by pressing the green plus.

2. "User initials"

Now the user name can be added. The name must not / cannot be longer than maximum 4 characters.

3.

Press the disc-symbol and the name is stored.

4. X

If you press the red cross, the user name is deleted.

Profesd+		
System Setup Successfully and Setup Successfully and Setup Successfully and Setup Setup Setup Setup Set	Settings	
	Feeder Settings	2
Synchronize	System name Feeder System 1:	2
(·	Feeder System 2: 🔽 Farm #1	-
	Feeder System 3: 🗹 Farm #2	
	Feeder System 4:	
	Feeder System 5: 🔲	
	Feeder System 6:	
	Unit Settings Weight Unit: Kg	
	Communication Settings	
	Custom Port: Kommunikationsport(COM1)	
	4	0
Ready		Unknown port 🛒
		PR13

Fig. 4.7

MENU E: "SETTINGS"

Fig. 4.7

1. "Feeder settings"

If you use several feeders for the same PC software the setting must be as follows: place a check mark and name the feeder (system name).



If it is necessary to replace the main terminal, it must, due to consumption data, be learned as a new feeder system.

2. "Unit settings"

The weight unit can either be [kg] or [pound]. Stored load plans and unload plans are changed automatically if the unit is changed.

3. "Communication settings"

The communication unit, which is connected to a USB port, can be found automatically if there is a check mark in "Use Auto detected port" (recommended). Alternatively the port must be chosen actively.

4.

Press the disc-symbol and the settings are stored.

₩ ProFeed+			
Exit			
Data Analysis			
System Setup 📀			
Construction (
Synchronize			
Synchronize reeders	Synchronization		
	Select Feeder System t	to Synchronize	
	1 Select Feeder System:	2 - Farm #1	
		Use newest data	
		Use PC data	
		Use newest data	
	Synchronization Informa	ation:	
		3	
		0 ¢	
		v	
Ready		💥 Unkn	own port 💥
			3-0216
			PR1

Fig. 4.8

MENU F: "SYNCHRONIZE FEEDERS"

Fig. 4.8

1. "Select Feeder system"

Here you select the Feeder which will be used for synchronization. The list shows the Feeders that have been chosen under point E-1.

2. "Syncronisation method"

There are 3 different synchronization methods:

- Use PC data: PC data is used and what lies on the main terminal is overwritten.
- Use Terminal Data: Terminal data is used and what lies on the PC is overwritten.

Use newest Data: During the synchronizing phase the data are compared and the newest will be stored.



Please note! It is important that the date-time settings on the PC and the main terminal correspond with each other.



Please note! <u>Always</u> check which synchronisation method has been chosen before starting the synchronisation process. Also consider the consequences of your choice carefully.



No matter which one of the 3 methods you choose there is no risk of loosing the gathered feeding data.

3.

Start the synchronization by pressing the green arrows. It takes a little longer the first time because there is much new data that has to be exchanged. Afterwards, only the data which have been changed will be synchronized.



5. TECHNICAL DATA

A) ASSEMBLY BOX FOR WEIGHING CELLS

Size, LxWxH [mm]	255x180x75
Weight [g]	1050
Protection class	IP66
Plastic material	ABS
Voltage supply [V DC]	10 to24
Electricity consumption [mA]	Maximum 90
Demand for initial fuse [A]	Maximum 10
Radio frequency [MHz]	868
Up-date frequency	5 times per second
Number of weighing cells	1 to 8
Printed circuit board	SMD mounted and sealed against moisture
Temperature [C°]	-20 to 70
CE-approved	Yes



Fig. 5.2

B) MAIN TERMINAL

Size, LxWxH [mm]	195x100x44
Weight [g]	392
Protection class	IP40
Plastic material	ABS
Voltage supply [V DC]	10 to 24
Electricity consumption [mA]	Maximum 350
Demand for initial fuse [A]	Maximum 10
Radio frequency [MHz]	868
Up-date frequency	5 times per second
Display-resolution	128x64 pixels
Background light	Yes
Backup battery	3V type CR2032
Printed circuit board	SMD mounted and sealed against moisture
Temperature [C°]	-20 to 70
Heating element by display	Yes
CE-approved	Yes



Fig. 5.3

C) HAND TERMINAL

Size, LxWxH [mm]	120x65x21
Weight [g]	140
Protection class	IP40
Plastic material	ABS
Voltage supply [V DC]	9 to 24
Demand for initial fuse [A]	Maximum 10
Battery type "E" [V]	9
Rechargeable battery [V]	9 NiMH
Electricity consumption [mA]	Maximum 60
Electricity consumption without back- ground light [mA]	14
Radio frequency [MHz]	868
Up-date frequency	5 times per second
Display-resolution	128x64 pixels
Background light	Yes
Backup battery	3V type CR2032
Printed circuit board	SMD mounted and sealed against moisture
Temperature [C°]	-20 to 70
CE-approved	Yes



Fig. 5.4

D) SENDER/RECEIVER FOR USB

Size, LxWxH [mm]	92x56x23
Weight [g]	57
Protection class	IP40
Plastic material	ABS
Voltage supply [V]	Via USB
Electricity consumption [mA]	<100
Radio frequency [MHz]	868
Transfer speed	approx. 700 mixtures/min.
Printed circuit board	SMD mounted and sealed against moisture
Temperature [C°]	0 to 70
CE-approved	Yes



Fig. 6.1

Trofeed+	- DX
Sec. Exit	
Data Analysis	
System Setup	
Unload Plans	
Settings	
Feeder Settings	
Synchronize Image: Synchronize Feeder System 1: Image: Synchronize	
Feeder System 2: 🗹 Farm #1	
Feeder System 3: 🗹 Farm #2	
Feeder System 4:	
Feeder System 5:	
Feeder System 6:	
Unit Settings	
Weight Unit: Kg	
Communication Settings	
Custom Port: Kommunikationsport(COM1)	
	<u></u>
Keady A	Unknown port
	PR13-0

Fig. 6.2

6. MISCELLANEOUS

LEARNING

In order for all units to work together as one system which is not disturbed by signals from the outside, they must be "linked together".

The main terminal is the central unit to which all units are connected.

1) Choose menu point 3.11: "Learn mode" on the main terminal.

- **Fig. 6.1** 2) Learn the assembly box for weighing cells by pressing (A) until the 3 light diodes (green, yellow, red) (B) are blinking (approx. 3 seconds).
 - 3) Learn the hand terminal by choosing menu point "Learn mode" under "Setup". When the following text appears in the display you have succeeded: "Id received, press OK".
- Fig. 6.2 4) Establish the connection with the PC software by choosing menu point: "Settings" in the PC software, place a check mark at the system you wish to use and name the system. The settings are saved by choosing the disc symbol. Finally, press the gear wheel symbol at the system you wish to use.



If it is necessary to replace the main terminal, it must, due to consumption data, be learned as a new feeder system.

INTERRUPTIONS

PROBLEM	POSSIBLE CAUSE	ACTION
No light in the remote control	The battery is flat.	Change the battery.
No reaction when but- tons are pressed.	Poor signal communication.	Radio noise sources close by must be turned off.
No signal	No current on weiging box	
No current on weiging box	Error in external 7-pole or 2- pole plug	Change fuse in external plug



Moving agriculture ahead

EF-overensstemmelseserklæring/ EG-Konformitätserklärung/ EC Declaration of Conformity/ Déclaration CE de conformité/ Dichiarazione CE di conformita/ EG Verklaring van Overeenstemming/ EG-försäkran om överensstämmelse/ EY-vaatimustenmukaisuusvakuutus/ Declaración de conformidad CE/ Deklaracja Zgodności WE./ Декларация за съответствие EO/ EK Megfelelőségi Nyilatkozat /ES Prohlášení o shodě/ EB Atitikties deklaracija/ ES prehlásenie o zhode/ Declarația de conformitate CE/ Vastavuse Deklaratsioon EÜ /ES Izjava o skladnosti/ Δήλωση πιστότητας EK/ Declaração de fidelidade CE/ Dikjarazzjoni ta' Konformità tal-KE/ EK Atbilstības deklarācija/

Fabrikant/ Hersteller/ Manufacturer/ Fabricant/ Productore/ Fabrikant/ Fabrikant/ Valmistaja/ Fabricante/ Producent/ Προμαθομπεπ/ Gyártó/ Výrobce/ Gamintojas/ Výrobca/ Producător/ Tootja/ Proizvajalec/ Κατασκευαστής/ Fabricante/ Fabrikant/ Ražotājs

CNH INDUSTRIAL BELGIUM N.V.

Leon Claeysstraat 3a, 8210 Zedelgem, BELGIUM

Repræsenteret af Antoon Vermeulen, Leon Claeysstraat 3A, B8210 Zedelgem (Belgien), som også har tilladelse til at indsamle teknisk dokumentation / vertreten durch Antoon Vermeulen, Leon Claeysstraat 3A, B8210 Zedelgem (Belgium), der auch autorisiert ist, die technische Akte zu erarbeiten / represented by Antoon Vermeulen, Leon Claeysstraat 3A, B8210 Zedelgem (Belgium), who is also authorised to compile the Technical File / Répresentés par Antoon Vermeulen, Leon Claeysstraat 3A, B8210 Zedelgem (Belgique), également autorisé à constituer le dossier technique / rappresentati da Antoon Vermeulen, Leon Claeysstraat 3A, B8210 Zedelgem (Belgio), autorizzato a compilare il File tecnico / vertegenwoordigd door Antoon Vermeulen, Leon Claeysstraat 3Å, B8210 Zedelgem (Belgium), die tevens is gemachtigd om het Technisch Bestand samen te stellen / representerade av Antoon Vermeulen, Leon Claeysstraat 3A, B8210 Zedelgem (Belgien), som också har behörighet att sammanställa den tekniska dokumentationen / edustajamme Antoon Vermeulenin, osoite Leon Claeysstraat 3A, B8210 Zedelgem (Belgium) välityksellä, jolla on myös oikeus laatia tekninen tiedosto / representados por Antoon Vermeulen, Leon Claeysstraat 3A, B8210 Zedelgem (Bélgica), quien además está autorizado para recopilar el documento técnico / której przedstawicielem jest Antoon Vermeulen, Leon Claeysstraat 3A, B8210 Zedelgem (Belgia), który jest również upoważniony do sporządzania dokumentacji technicznej / представлявани от Антоон Вермьолен, Leon Claeysstraat 3A, B8210 Zedelgem (Белгия), с упълномощение също да състави Техническото досие / akiket képvisel: Antoon Vermeulen, Leon Claeysstraat 3A, B8210 Zedelgem (Belgium), aki szintén jogosult a műszaki dokumentumok összeállítására / v zastoupení Antoon Vermeulen, Leon Claeysstraat 3A, B8210 Zedelgem (Belgium), s autorizací k tvorbě technického souboru / atstovaujami Antoon Vermeulen, Leon Claevsstraat 3A, B8210 Zedelgem (Belgija), taip pat turintis teise sudaryti technines bylas / v zastúpení Antoonom Vermeulenom, Leon Claeysstraat 3A, B8210 Zedelgem (Belgicko), ktorý je oprávnený zostavovať technickú dokumentáciu / reprezentati de Antoon Vermeulen, Leon Claeysstraat 3A, B8210 Zedelgem (Belgia), care este, de asemenea, autorizat să compileze dosarul ethnic / esindajatega Antoon Vermeulen, Leon Claeysstraat 3A, B8210 Zedelgem (Belgia), kellel on samuti luba tehnilise faili koostamiseks / ki nas zastopa Antoon Vermeulen, Leon Claeysstraat 3Å, B8210 Zedelgem (Belgija), ki je pooblaščen tudi za sestavo tehnične dokumentacije / εκπροσωπούμενοι από τον Antoon Vermeulen, Leon Claeysstraat 3A, B8210 Zedelgem (Βέλγιο), με εξουσιοδότηση και για τη σύνταξη του Τεχνικού φακέλου / representados por Antoon Vermeulen, Leon Claeysstraat 3A, B8210 Zedelgem (Bélgica), que também tem autorização para compilar o Ficheiro Técnico / irrapprezentata minn Antoon Vermeulen Leon Claeysstraat 3a, B8210 Zedelgem (Belgju), min huwa wkoll awtorizzat li tigbor I-Fajl Tekniku / Antoon Vermeulen, Leon Claeysstraat 3A, B8210, Zedelgem (Belgium), pārstāvēti, kas ir pilnvarots arī sastādīt tehnisko reģistru

Erklærer hermed, at/ Erklären hiermit, daß/ Hereby declare that/ Déclare par la présente que/ Dichiara che/ Verklaren hierbij dat/ Försäkrar härmed, att/ Vakuuttaa täten, että tuote/ Por el presente declara que/ Niniejszym deklaruje, że/ Декларирам, чe/ Az alábbiakban kijelentem, hogy/ Tímto prohlašuje, že/ Deklaruoja, kad/ Týmto prehlasujeme, že/ Prin prezenta declar că/ Alljärgnevaga deklareerib, et/ Izjavljamo, da je/ Με το παρόν δηλώνω ότι/ Abaixo declara que **/** Jiddikjaraw li / Apstiprinu, ka

Maskine:La máquina:Masin:Maschine:Maszyna:Stroj:Machine:Μашината:Η μηχανή:Machine:Gép:Máquina:La macchina:Stroj:II-magna:Machine:Mašina:Mašīna:Maskin:Stroj:Stroj:Laite:Maşina:	Model/Type: Feed Manager Designation: Mixer Serial:
---	--

- er i overensstemmelse med Maskindirektivets bestemmelser (Direktiv 2006/42/EF) og hvis relevant også bestemmelserne i EMC-direktivet 2014/30/EU.

- In übereinstimmung mit den Bestimmungen der Maschinen-Richtlinie 2006/42/EG und wenn erforderlich auch mit der EMC-Richtlinie 2014/30/EU hergestellt wurde.

- is in conformity with the provisions of the Machinery Directive 2006/42/EC and if relevant also the provisions of the EMC Directive 2014/30/EU.

- est conforme aux dispositions de la Directive relatives aux machines 2006/42/CE et également aux dispositions de la Directive sur la Directive EMC 2014/30/UE.

- é in conformita' con la Direttiva Macchine 2006/42/CE e, se pertinente, anche alla Direttiva alla Direttiva EMC 2014/30/UE.

- in overeenstemming is met de bepalingen van de Machine richtlijn 2006/42/EG en wanneer relevant ook met de bepalingen van de EMC richtlijn 2014/30/EU.

- är i överensstämmelse med Maskindirektivets bestämmelser (Direktiv 2006/42/EG) ock om relevant också bestämmelserne EMC-direktivet 2014/30/EU.

- täyttää Konedirektiivin (Direktiivi 2006/42/EY) määräykset ja oleellisilta osin myös EMC-direktiivin 2014/30/EU.

- es conforme a la Directiva de Maquinaria 2006/42/CE y, si aplica, es conforme también a la Directiva EMC 2014/30/EU.

- pozostaje w zgodzie z warunkami Dyrektywy Maszynowej 2006/42/WE i jeżeli ma to zastosowanie również z warunkami Dyrektywy dot. kompatybilności elektro magnetycznej EMC 2014/30/UE.

- отговаря на изискванията на Директивата за Машините 2006/42/ЕО и ако има приложение на изискванията на Директивата за електромагнитна съвместимост 2014/30/ЕС.

- Megfelel a 2006/42/EK Gépi Eszközökre vonatkozó előírásoknak és amennyiben felhasználásra kerül, a 2014/30/EU Elektromágneses kompatibilitás Irányelv feltételeinek.

- odpovídá základním požadavkům Strojní směrnice 2006/42/ES a jestliže to její uplatnění vyžaduje i s podmínkami Směrnice 2014/30/EU týkající se elektromagnetické kompatibility.

- atitinka Mašinų direktyvos Nr. 2006/42/EB ir, jeigu taikoma, Elektromagnetinio suderinamumo direktyvos Nr. 2014/30/ES reikalavimus.

- je v súlade s podmienkami Smernice 2006/42/ES o strojných zariadeniach a pokiaľ si to jeho uplatnenie vyžaduje aj s podmienkami Smernice 2014/30/EÚ o elektromagnetickej kompatibilite.

- îndeplinește prevederilor Directivei de Mașini 2006/42/CE și dacă este utilizată de asemenea cu prevederile Directivei referitoare la compatibilitatea electro-magnetică EMC 2014/30/UE.

- on vastavuses Masinate Direktiivi tingimustega 2006/42/EÜ ning sammuti juhul, kui on tegemist sammuti on vastavuses Elektromagnetilise kokkusobivuse Direktiivitingimustega EMC 2014/30/EL.

- z določili Direktive o strojih 2006/42/ES ter, če je to relevantno, tudi z določili EMC Direktive 2014/30/EU.

 - παραμένει σύμφωνη με τους όρους της Οδηγίας περί Μηχανών 2006/42/ΕΚ και σε περίπτωση που αυτό εφαρμόζεται και με τους όρους της Οδηγίας περί ηλεκτρομαγνητικής συμβατότητας (ΗΜΣ) 2014/30/ΕΕ.

- Está de acordo com exigências das Directivas das Maquínarias 2006/42/CE e no caso em que tiver igualmente aplicação com as exigências das Directivas referentes a compatibilidade electromagnética EMC 2014/30/UE.

- tikkonforma mad-dispożizzjonijiet tad-Direttiva dwar il-Makkinarju 2006/42/KE u jekk rilevanti wkoll mad-dispożizzjonijiet tad d-Direttiva EMC 2014/30/EU.

- atbilst mašīnu direktīvai 2006/42/EK, kā arī nepieciešamības gadījumā elektromagnētiskās saderības direktīvai EMC 2014/30/ES.

Zedelgem, date:

Dermuds

Antoon Vermeulen

Dealer's stamp

CNH Industrial Belgium N.V. reserves the right to make improvements in design and changes in specifications at any time without notice and without incurring any obligation to install them on units previously sold. Specifications, descriptions, and illustrative material herein are as accurate as known at time of publication, but are subject to change without notice.

Availability of some models and equipment builds varies according to the country in which the equipment is being used. For exact information about any particular product, please consult your Kongskilde dealer.



© 2018 CNH Industrial Belgium N.V. All Rights Reserved. Kongskilde is a trademark registered in the United States and many other countries, owned by or licensed to CNH Industrial N.V., its subsidiaries or affiliates.

Any trademarks referred to herein, in association with goods and/or services of companies, other than owned by or licensed to CNH Industrial N.V., its subsidiaries or affiliates, are the property of those respective companies.